NEW YORK STATE MEDICAID PROGRAM

INFORMATION FOR ALL PROVIDERS GENERAL BILLING

Table of Contents

COMMON BENEFIT IDENTIFICATION CARD	2
VOICE INTERACTIVE PHONE SYSTEM	3
PRIOR APPROVAL ROSTERS	4
ELECTRONIC ROSTER	4
BILLING FOR MEDICAL ASSISTANCE SERVICES	6
CLAIMS SUBMITTED FOR STOP-LOSS PAYMENTS	6
CLAIMS OVER 90-DAYS OLD, LESS THAN TWO YEARS OLD	6
ACCEPTABLE DELAY REASONS	6
CLAIMS OVER TWO YEARS OLD	
ELECTRONIC CLAIMS SUBMISSION	
CLAIM STATUS OPTIONS	9
ePACES	
ePACES Real Time	
Electronic Claim Status Request	
Electronic Claim Status Responses	
Paper Remittance	
Electronic Remittance	
ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER	
CLAIMS PENDED FOR REVIEW BY THE OFFICE OF THE STATE COMPTROLLER	
HIPAA CLAIM DENIALS.	
CLAIM CERTIFICATION STATEMENT	13

Common Benefit Identification Card

There are four types of Common Benefit Identification Cards (CBIC) or documents with which you will need to become familiar;

- a photo card,
- > a non-photo card,
- > a paper replacement CBIC and
- a Temporary Medicaid Authorization (DSS-2831A).

The photo and non-photo cards are permanent plastic cards and each contains information needed for verifying eligibility for a single enrollee. Each card contains the following information for the enrollee:

- Medicaid identification number;
- first name;
- > last name:
- middle initial:
- > sex; and
- date of birth.

Additionally, each card contains an access number, a sequence number, an encoded magnetic strip and a signature panel. The photo ID card also contains a photo. Neither card contains an expiration date.

The provider must verify enrollee eligibility via the Medicaid Eligibility Verification System (MEVS) each time service is provided to be assured that an enrollee is eligible.

If an enrollee's permanent plastic ID card has been lost, stolen or damaged, the enrollee will be issued a temporary replacement paper CBIC (DSS-3713), which contains the following information for the enrollee:

- Medicaid identification number;
- first name:
- last name:
- middle initial:
- > sex; and
- date of birth.

This temporary card carries an expiration date after which the card cannot be used. Verification of eligibility must be completed via MEVS whenever a temporary replacement card (DSS-3713) is presented.

In some circumstances, the enrollee may present a Temporary Medicaid Authorization (DSS-2831A). This document is issued by the local department of social services

(LDSS) when the enrollee has an immediate medical need and a permanent plastic identification card has not yet been received by the enrollee. It is a guarantee of eligibility for the authorization period indicated (maximum 15 days); therefore, verification of eligibility via MEVS is not required. Limitations and/or restrictions are listed on the Authorization. In these cases it will be necessary for some providers to place a code of "M" in the "SA EXCP CODE" field on the eMedNY billing form in order to indicate that the enrollee had a Temporary Medicaid Authorization. Please refer to the Billing Guidelines section of your specific provider manual for instructions. Questions regarding eligibility should be directed to the LDSS issuing the DSS-2831A.

Note: Each of these documents is described in greater detail in the "Common Benefit Identification Card" section of the MEVS Provider Manual.

The MEVS Provider Manual is available to Medicaid enrolled providers. This manual can be accessed at or downloaded from:

http://www.emedny.org/ProviderManuals/index.html.

Samples of the four types of CBIC are shown and detailed descriptions are provided in the **MEVS Provider Manual** section entitled, "Common Benefit Identification Cards".

Note: The sample cards shown in the **MEVS Provider Manual** are issued to New York State Medicaid enrollees whose district of fiscal responsibility is within eMedNY. Claims for patients with non-eMedNY CBIC should be sent to the Local Department of Social Services indicated in the MEVS response.

Voice Interactive Phone System

Medicaid offers the Voice Interactive Phone System (VIPS) to afford providers the opportunity to conduct a name search to locate the Client Identification Number (CIN) of Medicaid enrollees who were unable to present their cards at the time of service. This system is accessible by calling (518) 472-1550 from a touch-tone telephone and following the voice prompts. There is a charge of \$.85 per minute.

Prior Approval Rosters

Prior approval/authorization rosters contain information necessary to submit claims for certain services provided to Medicaid enrollees. Rosters contain necessary billing information, including, but not limited to: prior approval/authorization number, client identification number, applicable approved/authorized procedure/rate code/s, and date/s of service.

Electronic Roster

Rosters are available electronically in Portable Document Format (pdf) via the eMedNY eXchange, at no additional expense to providers, and are delivered in advance of hard copy rosters so claims may be submitted and paid earlier. Electronic rosters are not in HIPAA-compliant format, therefore providers need not purchase additional software to read or interpret roster information.

Weekly rosters for transportation and personal care services providers are posted every Monday. For all other provider types, a roster is posted the day after prior approvals are approved.

eXchange works like email. A provider, who has requested an electronic roster, would log on to the eXchange via the eMedNY website. After entering an assigned User Identification Number and password, the provider is able to print the roster and/or detach the roster file to save it on a personal computer for future reference.

What information is included on the electronic roster?

- Roster Date
- PA Number
- Procedure/Rate Code
- Approved Quantity
- Approved Times
- Ordering Provider
 National Provider ID
- Patient Name
- Patient Medicaid ID
- Patient Gender
- Patient Date of Birth
- Patient County
- Billing Provider ID or National Provider ID
- Billing Provider Name
- Dates of Service
- Approved Amount

How does a provider obtain a User Identification Number and password for eXchange?

First, the eMedNY eXchange is available only to providers who have enrolled in ePACES. Once a provider is enrolled in ePACES, then the provider is automatically enrolled in eXchange.

After successful enrollment in ePACES, the provider calls the eMedNY Call Center at (800) 343-9000 to activate their eXchange inbox.

Information for All Providers – General Billing

Providers not yet enrolled in ePACES will need the following prior to contacting the Call Center to enroll:

- Computer with internet access;
- Valid email address;
- Internet browser (Explorer v.4.01, Netscape v 4.7 or higher);
- Operating system of Microsoft Windows, Macintosh or Linux;
- > NYS Provider Identifier; and
- > ETIN (that is not for a service bureau).

The electronic prior approval request for is available at:

http://www.emedny.org/info/ProviderEnrollment/index.html.

Version 2008-3 September 1, 2008 Page 5 of 14

Billing for Medical Assistance Services

Medicaid regulations require that claims for payment of medical care, services, or supplies to eligible enrollees be initially submitted within **90 days of the date of service** to be valid and enforceable, unless the claim is delayed due to circumstances outside the control of the provider. Acceptable reasons for a claim to be submitted beyond 90 days are listed below.

If a claim is denied or returned for correction, it must be corrected and resubmitted within **60 days of the date of notification** to the provider. Claims not correctly resubmitted within 60 days, or those continuing to not be payable after the second resubmission, are neither valid nor enforceable.

All claims must be **finally** submitted to the eMedNY Contractor and be payable within two years from the date the care, services or supplies were furnished in order to be valid and enforceable against the Department or a social service district.

Claims Submitted for Stop-Loss Payments

All claims for Stop-Loss payment must be finally submitted to the Department, and be payable, within two years from the close of the benefit year in order to be valid and enforceable against the Department.

For example, calendar year 2002 payable claims must be finally submitted no later than December 31, 2004 with corresponding cutoff for future years.

Claims Over 90-Days Old, Less Than Two Years Old

Paper claims over 90 days of the date of service must be submitted with a 90-day letter attached (with the exception of Third Party Insurance Processing Delay). The reason for the delay should be indicated on a piece of paper the same size (8½ x 11) and paper quality as the invoice.

Because the claim forms do not contain an invoice number, **each** claim must have its **own** 90-day letter attached. This allows the imaging system to simultaneously track each claim and attachment.

Acceptable Delay Reasons

Claims over 90 days, and less than two years, from the date of service may be submitted if the delay is due to one or more of the following acceptable conditions. The applicable delay reason(s) must be included on a 90-day letter attached to the claim.

 Proof of Eligibility Unknown or Unavailable – Delay in Medicaid Client Eligibility Determination (including Fair Hearing) The enrollee applied for Medicaid and their eligibility was backdated. If the claim ages over 90 days while this process is taking place, then this reason applies.

The claim must be submitted within 30 days from the time of notification.

Litigation

This means there was some kind of litigation involved and there was the possibility that payment for the claim may come from another source, such as a lawsuit.

The claim must be submitted within thirty (30) days from the time submission came within the control of the Provider.

Authorization Delays/Administrative Delay (Enrollment Process, Prior Approval Process, Rate Changes, etc.) by the Department or other State Agency

For example: Provider enrollment may back date the effective date of a Specialty Code.

Delay in Certifying Provider/Administrative Delay (Enrollment Process, Prior Approval Process, Rate Changes, etc.) by the Department or other State Agency

For example: Provider enrollment may back date the effective date of a Specialty Code.

- Delay in Supplying Billing Forms
- Third Party Processing Delay Medicare and Other Third Party Processing Delays

The claim had to be submitted to Medicare or other Third Party Insurance before being submitted to Medicaid.

The claim must be submitted within thirty (30) days from the time submission came within the control of the Provider.

 Delay in Eligibility Determination/Delay in Medicaid Client Eligibility Determination (including Fair Hearing)

This means the enrollee applied for Medicaid and their eligibility date was backdated. If the claim ages over 90 days while this process is taking place, then this reason applies.

The claim must be submitted within thirty (30) days from the time of notification.

Original Claim Rejected or Denied Due to a Reason Unrelated to the Billing Limitation Rules

This means the Provider submitted the claim on time and was denied for some other reason. If the date of service is over 90 days when they rebill, this reason applies.

The claim must be submitted within thirty (30) days from the time of notification.

Administration Delay in the Prior Approval Process/Administrative Delay (prior approval) by the Department of Health or other State agency

IPRO denial/reversal (Island Peer Review Organization) previously denied the claim, but the denial was reversed on appeal.

Other/Interrupted Maternity Care

Prenatal care claims over 90 days because delivery was performed by a different practitioner.

Claims Over Two Years Old

All claims over two years old will be denied for **edit 1292** (*DOS (date of service) Two Yrs (years) Prior to Date Received*). The Department will *only* consider claims over two years old for payment only if the provider can produce documentation verifying that the cause of the delay was the result of one or more of the following:

- Errors by the Department, the local social services district, or another agent of the Department; or
- Court-ordered payments.

If a Provider believes that claims denied for edit 1292 are payable due to one of the reasons above, they may request a review. All claims **must** be submitted **within 90 days of the date on the remittance advice** with supporting documentation to:

New York State Department of Health Two Year Claim Review 150 Broadway, Suite 6E Albany, New York 12204-2736.

Claims submitted for review without the appropriate documentation, or those not submitted within the 90-day time period for review, will not be considered.

When a provider **voids** a previously paid claim and now wishes to resubmit, the resubmission is treated as a **new claim** and will be subjected to the criteria above for the submission of claim(s) over two years old. All timely submission rules apply. The new claim will not be considered as an agency error and, therefore, **will not** qualify for a waiver of the two-year regulation. Adjustments, rather than voids, should always be billed to correct a paid claim(s).

Electronic Claims Submission

Most claims for payment of medical care, services and supplies may be submitted electronically, including originals, resubmissions, adjustments and voids. The only exceptions are claims that require paper attachments such as enrollee's "consent forms" or provider's procedure reports for manual pricing.

When a file is submitted to eMedNY, a series of response files are returned to the submitter to communicate the status of the transaction. Errors in transmissions may cause transactions not to be processed. eMedNY sends status files that can prevent surprises and negative impacts on cash flow. Please review the list of frequently asked questions online at:

http://www.emedny.org/hipaa/FAQs/index.html.

If you would like more information about computer generated claims submission or require the input specifications for the submission of the types of claims indicated above, please call the eMedNY Call Center at (800) 343-9000.

Claim Status Options

Medicaid offers a number of tools to assist providers seeking claim status information without having to wait for remittance statements. eMedNY Call Center staff are **not** able to perform routine claim status checks for providers and submitters waiting for their remittances to be delivered.

ePACES

To request claim status for ePACES claims, providers just need to select from a list of submitted claims. The status of ePACES claims is usually available on the same day the claim was submitted.

For claims submitted via other methods, ePACES requires the key entry of a few pieces of claim data in order to retrieve the status, including the paid amount. Availability of the claim status for claims submitted via other methods may vary depending on the submission method and the time it reached the eMedNY Contractor for processing.

ePACES Real Time

The status of claims, including the paid amount, submitted via "Real Time" is available for professional claims immediately following submission.

Electronic Claim Status Request

Electronic requests can be submitted as batch files. Submitters need a software program to produce the requests in a HIPAA-compliant format and to interpret the 277 Claim Status Response.

Electronic Claim Status Responses

These are returned via ePACES or the 277 transaction containing the HIPAA-compliant response codes. To assist providers with interpreting the response codes, an edit mapping document is available online at:

http://www.emedny.org/hipaa/Crosswalk/index.html.

Paper Remittance

Claim status information is available two and one half weeks after processing is completed.

Electronic Remittance

To receive Electronic Remittances, providers must submit a completed *Electronic Remittance Request Form*, available online at:

http://www.emedny.org/info/ProviderEnrollment/index.html.

Electronic Remittances generally include the status of electronically and paper submitted claims as well as state-submitted adjustments and voids whenever providers who have only one Electronic Transmitter Identification Number sign up for electronic remittances.

Note: State-submitted adjustments and voids are transactions submitted by New York State or one of its contractors and are based upon audit findings.

The *Electronic Remittance Request Form* is available online at:

http://www.emedny.org/info/ProviderEnrollment/index.html.

Electronic Funds Transfer

Medicaid funds issued to a provider as a result of paper or electronic claims submission can be electronically transferred to a designated bank account or accounts. Providers do not have to submit claims electronically to take advantage of the convenience of EFT. To enroll in EFT, complete the EFT Provider Enrollment Form, available online at:

http://www.emedny.org/info/ProviderEnrollment/index.html.

After submitting the *Form*, please allow four to six weeks for processing.

Claims Pended for Review by the Office of the State Comptroller

The New York State Constitution requires the Office of the State Comptroller (OSC) to audit all vouchers before payment, including claims that are submitted to the Medicaid Program. OSC will suspend certain claims from the Medicaid payment procedure in order to conduct a thorough review of those claims.

Some providers will see an edit code and reason associated with the OSC audit:

02014 - Claim Under Review by the Office of the State Comptroller.

If a provider is receiving the HIPAA-compliant error codes, then the OSC edit will be mapped to:

Claim Adjustment Reason Code 95 – Benefits Adjusted. Plan Procedures Not Followed.

If a provider has claims pending or denied for this reason, a representative from OSC will contact the provider to discuss the provider's claims. This may include scheduling an appointment to visit the provider's facility to inspect medical records and other documentation supporting the claims being reviewed.

Under the Code of Federal Regulations (45 CFR § 164.512(d)(1) (HIPAA)), medical providers are permitted to disclose protected health information to an oversight agency, for oversight activities which are authorized by law, such as audits. For these purposes, OSC is an oversight agency.

HIPAA Claim Denials

With the implementation of HIPAA-standardized claim error reasons, it can be difficult to pinpoint the specific reason for a claim denial because HIPAA requires that denied claims be assigned a *Claim Adjustment Reason Code*.

An Edit/Error Knowledgebase tool for analyzing claim edit codes and/or claim status codes is available online at:

http://www.emedny.org/hipaa/edit_error/KnowledgeBase.html.

Good Cause

Medicaid providers should always bill available health insurance unless they received authorization from the DOH that "good cause" exists not to bill the health insurance. Health insurance is only determined to be available if the Medicaid Eligibility Verification System (MEVS) indicates that the insurance covers the particular service for which the provider would be billing Medicaid.

Circumstances in which the DOH must determine "good cause" not to bill health insurance involve situations where the billing could jeopardize the emotional or physical health, safety and/or privacy of the Medicaid enrollee. These circumstances commonly arise but are not restricted to occasions on which reproductive health services such as family planning, pregnancy-related services or treatment of sexually transmitted diseases are provided.

When warranted, providers on behalf of their patients may request a "good cause" determination and an authorization for not billing the health insurance.

If a particular patient wants the service to remain confidential, the provider must contact the DOH weekdays between 8:00am and 4:45pm at:

(800) 541-2831.

If "good cause" is granted, the provider must document the date of the call and that DOH staff gave permission not to bill the health insurance. The information obtained may be utilized as documentation for future audits or claim reviews.

Once a positive determination of "good cause" has been received, the provider must enter \$0.00 in the insurance payment field of the Medicaid claim form. Since the DOH monitors \$0.00 filled claims, it is especially important to obtain the previously described approval and document that approval.

Claim Certification Statement

Provider certifies that:

- ➤ I am (or the business entity named on this form of which I am a partner, officer or director is) a qualified provider enrolled with and authorized to participate in the New York State Medical Assistance Program and in the profession or specialties, if any, required in connection with this claim;
- I have reviewed this form;
- ➤ I (or the entity) have furnished or caused to be furnished the care, services and supplies itemized in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations;
- The amounts listed are due and, except as noted, no part thereof has been paid by, or to the best of my knowledge is payable from any source other than, the Medical Assistance Program;
- Payment of fees made in accordance with established schedules is accepted as payment in full; other than a claim rejected or denied or one for adjustment, no previous claim for the care, services and supplies itemized has been submitted or paid;
- All statements made hereon are true, accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge;
- No material fact has been omitted from this form;
- I understand that payment and satisfaction of this claim will be from federal, state and local public funds and that I may be prosecuted under applicable federal and state laws for any false claims, statements or documents or concealment of a material fact;
- Taxes from which the State is exempt are excluded;
- All records pertaining to the care, services and supplies provided including all records which are necessary to disclose fully the extent of care, services and supplies provided to individuals under the New York State Medical Assistance Program will be kept for a period of six years from the date of payment, and such records and information regarding this claim and payment therefore shall be promptly furnished upon request to the local departments of social services, the DOH, the State Medicaid Fraud Control Unit of the New York State Office of Attorney General or the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services:

- ➤ There has been compliance with the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 and with section 504 of the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which forbid discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, handicap, age, sex and religion;
- ➤ I agree (or the entity agrees) to comply with the requirements of 42 CFR Part 455 relating to disclosures by providers; the State of New York through its eMedNY Contractor or otherwise is hereby authorized to
 - (1) make administrative corrections to this claim to enable its automated processing subject to reversal by provider, and
 - (2) accept the claim data on this form as original evidence of care, services and supplies furnished.

By making this claim I understand and agree that I (or the entity) shall be subject to and bound by all rules, regulations, policies, standards, fee codes and procedures of the DOH as set forth in Title 18 of the Official Compilation of Codes, Rules and Regulations of New York State and other publications of the Department, including Provider Manuals and other official bulletins of the Department.

I understand and agree that I (or the entity) shall be subject to and shall accept, subject to due process of law, any determinations pursuant to said rules, regulations, policies, standards, fee codes and procedures, including, but not limited to, any duly made determination affecting my (or the entity's) past, present or future status in the Medicaid Program and/or imposing any duly considered sanction or penalty.

I understand that my signature on the face hereof incorporates the above certifications and attests to their truth.